
 

 
LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 PROPOSED AGENDA 
WORK SESSION, MONDAY, JULY 7, 2025, 8:30 A.M. 

REGULAR SESSION, TUESDAY, JULY 8, 2025, 5:30 P.M. 
327 N. Ashley Street - 2nd Floor 

 
 

 

1. Call To Order 
    
2. Invocation 
    
3. Pledge Of Allegiance To The Flag 
    
4. Minutes For Approval 
    
  a. June 23, 2025, Work Session Minutes & June 24, 2025, Regular Session Minutes  
  Recommended Action:  Approve 
  Documents:  
      
  b. June 23, 2025 Budget Public Hearing Minutes  
  Recommended Action:  Approve 
  Documents:  
      
  c. June 30, 2025, Special Called Meeting (Budget Adoption) Minutes  
  Recommended Action:  Approve 
  Documents:  
      
5. Public Hearing 
    
  a. REZ-2025-10 Cain Property, 6261 US HWY 41 N, ~21ac, R-21 to PD-R, Well & Septic  
  Recommended Action:  Board's Pleasure 
  Documents:  
      

  b. REZ-2025-11 Langdale Capital Assets, Coleman Road, ~719 ac, C-C, R-1, & CON, to M-1 & 
CON, County Utilities  

  Recommended Action:  Board's Pleasure 
  Documents:  
      
6. For Consideration 
    

  a. Beer & Wine License - Mustapha Ndure of Wawa Southeast, LLC DBA WAWA Store #6308 
located at 4598 North Valdosta Rd., Valdosta, GA  

  Recommended Action:  Approve 
  Documents:  
      
7. Reports - County Manager 
    
8. Citizens Wishing To Be Heard - Please State Your Name and Address 
    
9. Adjournment 
    

 



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: REZ-2025-10 Cain Property, 6261 US HWY 41 N, ~21ac, R-21 
to PD-R, Well & Septic  

  
 

  

DATE OF MEETING: July 8, 2025   
    

BUDGET IMPACT: N/A 
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

(  ) Annual  
(  ) Capital 
(X) N/A 
(  ) SPLOST  
(  ) TSPLOST 

Work 
Session/Regular 
Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: REZ-2025-10 Cain Property, 6261 US HWY 41 N, ~21ac, 
R-21 to PD-R, Well & Septic 

 
 
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: This request represents a change in zoning on the subject property from 
Medium Density Residential (R-21) to a Rural Planned Development (PD-R).  The general motivation in this 
case is for the subject property to be developed into a new RV Park. The conceptual site plan highlighting the 
requested zoning and proposed uses are attached for consideration.   
  
Proposed access for the subject property is slated to/from US Hwy 41 North, a paved State minor arterial. 
Concerning the Comprehensive Plan Future Development Map the subject property is within the Rural Service 
Area and depicted as a Rural Residential Character Area, which recommends PD-R. It should also be noted 
that the subject property is within the Old US 41 North Corridor Road Overlay District.   
  
The TRC analyzed the request, the standards governing the exercise of zoning power set forth in 10.01.05 of 
the ULDC, and factors most relevant to this application, including the neighboring land uses and lot sizes, the 
viability of a Public Well & Septic system, the proposed density of the RV Park, the condition of the developers 
nearby properties (RV Park, MH Park, and MH Subdivision), and support of a growing and balanced 
economy.  Therefore, the TRC recommends Approval of the request per the site plan. 
  
Additionally, although the TRC does not believe that conditions of approval are necessary for the following 
information, it should be noted for future reference: Future parking and internal drive areas are to be 
constructed with an approved permeable or pervious pavement material where the material shall be subject 
to approval by the County Engineer, ULDC regulations for RV Parks and Campgrounds limit the occupancy of 
individual lots to a maximum of 90 days, and EPD approval for a tourist accommodation site including the well 
and septic design are required at the time of construction. 
 
At the Planning Commission Meeting, the applicant's agent spoke in favor of the request, while no one spoke 
in opposition. The GLPC followed the public hearing with a couple of clarifying questions about the site plan, 
before ultimately voting 7-0 to recommend Approval of the request per the site plan. 
  
  



 

 

OPTIONS: 1) Approve 
2) Approve with Conditions 
3) Table 
4) Deny 

  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Board's Pleasure 
  
DEPARTMENT: Planning/Zoning                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: JD Dillard 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 





U

.

S

.

 

H

I

G

H

W

A

Y

 

#

4

1

 

5

0

'

 

R

/

W

G

E

O

R

G

I

A

 

S

O

U

T

H

E

R

N

 

A

N

D

 

F

L

O

R

I

D

A

 

R

A

I

L

R

O

A

D

 

1

0

0

'

 

R

/

W

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

P

L

35'

8
0
'

35'

80'

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

60°'

60°'

60'

35'

S
3
°
 
0
7
'
 
2
6
.
0
9
"
E

1
8
9
.
7
9
3
'

N

8

3

°

 
0

2

'
 
5

2

.
8

1

"
E

3

2

3

.
4

9

3

'

1

9

3

.

0

6

'

N

8

2

°

 
4

3

'
 
1

1

.
6

7

"

E

2

8

2

.
5

8

6

'

2

1

7

.

3

4

'

60'

35'

30' SETBACK

6

 

B

A

C

K

-

I

N

 

S

P

A

C

E

S

8

 

P

U

L

L

 

T

H

R

O

U

G

H

 

S

P

A

C

E

S

8

 

P

U

L

L

 

T

H

R

O

U

G

H

 

S

P

A

C

E

S

8

 

P

U

L

L

 

T

H

R

O

U

G

H

 

S

P

A

C

E

S

2

8

 

B

A

C

K

-

I

N

 

R

V

 

S

P

A

C

E

S

8

 

R

V

 

S

P

A

C

E

S

50' SETBACK

PROJECT:

SHEET

  
A

R
R

O
W

 E
N

G
I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G
  

&
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N
 S

E
R

V
I
C

E
S

26
21

 H
W

Y 
84

 E
AS

T
VA

LD
O

ST
A,

 G
A 

31
60

6
(2

29
)2

55
-2

12
0

LS
AN

DE
RS

@
AR

RO
W

EN
G

IN
EE

RI
N

G
G

RO
U

P.
CO

M

C
R
D

 
F
I
L
E

C
H

E
C
K
E
D

 
B
Y

D
R
A
W

N
 
B
Y

P
R
O

J
E
C
T

D
A
T
E

DA
TE

DE
SC

RI
PT

IO
N

BY

©
  C

O
PY

RI
G

H
T 

20
25

TH
IS

 D
RA

W
IN

G
 IS

 T
H

E 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

O
F 

AR
RO

W
 E

N
G

IN
EE

RI
N

G
 A

N
D 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 S

ER
VI

CE
S 

AN
D 

M
AY

 N
O

T 
BE

 R
EP

RO
DU

CE
D

W
IT

H
O

U
T 

W
RI

TT
EN

 P
ER

M
IS

SI
O

N
. D

O
CU

M
EN

TS
 O

F 
PU

BL
IC

 R
EC

O
RD

 M
AY

 B
E 

CO
PI

ED
 B

U
T 

N
O

T 
AL

TE
RE

D.

N
E

W
 R

V
 P

A
R

K

L
O

C
A
T
E
D

 
I
N

 
L
L
 
9
1
 
&

 
9
4
 
O

F
 
T
H

E
 
1
2
T
H

 
L
.
D

.
 

L
O

W
N

D
E
S
 
C
O

U
N

T
Y
,
 
G

A

F
O

R
 R

O
D

N
E

Y
 C

A
I
N

6/
23

/2
02

5

25
01

0

25010

 
 
L
A
Y
O

U
T
 
P
L
A
N

 
F
O

R
:
 

G
N

S

H
LS

C3.0

PROFESSIONAL

No. 35112

R

E

G

I

S
T
E

R

E

D

E

N

G

I
N

E

E

R

GE
ORGIA

H. LARRY SANDE

RS

LEVEL II CERT. #28713

2

0

'
 
L

A

N

D

S

C

A

P

I
N

G

 
B

U

F

F

E

R

TOTAL RV SPACES = 66

1 FT.

NON-ENCROACHABLE

BUFFER

Know what's  below
Call  before you dig.

NOTE:

LOCATION OF UTILITIES SHOWN ARE APPROXIMATE.

PLEASE CONTACT GEORGIA 811 BEFORE DIGGING.

ARROW ENGINEERING & CONSTRUCTION SERVICES

DOES NOT GUARANTEE THAT ALL EASEMENTS

WHICH MAY AFFECT THE PROPERTY ARE SHOWN

HEREON AND ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR FAILURE

TO CONFIRM UTILITY LOCATIONS PRIOR TO ANY

DIGGING OR CONSTRUCTION.

00 60' 120'

1" = 60'

1

5

 
x

 
5

1

O

F

F

I
C

E

BACK IN RV SPACES = 42

PULL THRU RV SPACES = 24

DRIVEWAY STUBOUT

TO RESIDENTIAL FOR

POTENTIAL FUTURE

OFFICE. 24'

INGRESS/EGRESS MAY

BE MOVED HERE TO

ACHIEVE THIS

COVERED

12x18

PAVILION

2

4

'

 

I

N

G

R

E

S

S

/

E

G

R

E

S

S

E

A

S

E

M

E

N

T

SEPTIC TANK &

DRAIN FIELD

U

N

D

I

S

T

U

R

B

E

D

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

S

E

P

T

I

C

 

T

A

N

K

 

&

D

R

A

I

N

 

F

I

E

L

D

S

E

P

T

I

C

T

A

N

K

 

&

D

R

A

I

N

F

I

E

L

D

S

E

P

T

I

C

T

A

N

K

 

&

D

R

A

I

N

F

I

E

L

D

S

E

P

T

I

C

T

A

N

K

 

&

D

R

A

I

N

F

I

E

L

D

S

E

P

T

I

C

T

A

N

K

 

&

D

R

A

I

N

F

I

E

L

D

S

E

P

T

I

C

T

A

N

K

 

&

D

R

A

I

N

F

I

E

L

D

SEPTIC TANK

& DRAIN

FIELD

S

E

P

T

I

C

 

T

A

N

K

 

&

D

R

A

I

N

 

F

I

E

L

D

S

E

P

T

I

C

T

A

N

K

 

&

D

R

A

I

N

F

I

E

L

D

S

E

P

T

I

C

 

T

A

N

K

 

&

D

R

A

I

N

 

F

I

E

L

D

S

E

P

T

I

C

 

T

A

N

K

 

&

D

R

A

I

N

 

F

I

E

L

D

BATH HOUSE 14 x 50

2

0

'
 
L

A

N

D

S

C

A

P

I
N

G

 
B

U

F

F

E

R

PROJECT AREA = 21.12±

TOTAL UNDISTURBED BUFFER = 6.5 ACRES

TOTAL LANDSCAPING BUFFER = 0.8 ACRES

UNDISTURBED BUFFER

NOTE:

THE PRIMARY USE OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY

WILL BE FOR AN RV PARK. UNLESS OTHERWISE

DEPICTED ON THE SITE PLAN FUTURE

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR THE RV PARK

PROPERTY WILL BE GOVERNED BY ULDC

SECTION 4.03.14 AND RESIDENTIAL

AGRICULTURAL (R-A) ZONING STANDARDS.

NOTE:

UNLESS OTHERWISE DEPICTED ON THE SITE

PLAN FUTURE DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR

THE RESIDENTIAL PROPERTY WILL BE

GOVERNED BY LOW DENSITY RESIDENTIAL

(R-1) ZONING STANDARDS.

NOTE:

EXTERIOR LIGHTING WILL BESHIELDEDTO

AVOID DIRECT ILLUMINATION OF ADJACENT

PROPERTIES. 

R45'

R45'

2

0

'

 

L

A

N

D

S

C

A

P

I

N

G

 

B

U

F

F

E

R

R25'

R25'

R25'

R25'

R25'

R25'

R25'

R64'

R25'

R25' TYP.

R25'

R78'

R25'

R75'

R325.5'

R10'

R10'

R3'

R200'

R100'

R75'

R75'

R5'

DUMPSTER

AND PAD

BUMPOUT

FOR RV ARRIVALS

AutoCAD SHX Text
WETLAND  (PER ARROW ENGINEERING DELINEATION)

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
EXISTING POND

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
EXISTING DRAINAGE DITCH

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
TRACT "B" 21.12 AC

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
N 72°55'13" E

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
776.38'

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
3/4" G.P.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
1/2" I.P.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
3/4" G.P.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
3/4" G.P.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
4"X6" WOODEN POST FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
N 17°37'10" W

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
920.45'

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
6' WOOD POST

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
5/8" I.P.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
5/8" I.P.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
L3

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
L4

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
L5

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
L6

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
L7

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
L8

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
L9

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
L10

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
LOTS 1-9

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
BENCHMARK: NAIL & RIBBON ELEV. = 214.08'

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
S 15°05'09" E

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
235.20'

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
S 15°12'53" E

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
250.84'

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
L3

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
S 15°23'40" E

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
159.88'

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
L4

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
N 82°43'12" E

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
420.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
L5

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
S 15°21'48" E

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
410.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
L6

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
S 82°37'58" W

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
116.28'

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
L7

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
S 83°12'23" W

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
102.59'

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
L8

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
S 83°13'53" W

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
102.69'

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
L9

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
S 83°10'52" W

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
596.25'

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
L10

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
S 83°11'03" W

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
249.25'



Cain Property
Rezoning Request

R-21

PD-R

R-10

E-A

R
 D

U
S

T
IN

 C
A

IN
 S

T

JUSTIN V CAIN ST

U
S

 H
W

Y
 41 N Legend

Roads

Railroads

Parcels

Urban Service Area

Zoning Conditions

WET

YES

City Limits

Valdosta Airport

Zoning Districts

C-C

C-G

C-H

CON

E-A

I-S

M-1

M-2

M-3

MAZ - 1

MAZ - 2

MAZ - 3

O-I

P-D

PD-R

R-1

R-10

R-21

R-A

GLPC Zoning

Zoning Location Map

0 440 880

Feet

REZ-2025-10

.

CURRENT ZONING: R - 21
PROPOSED ZONING: PD - R



EE
R

 D
U

S
T

IN
 C

A
IN

 S
T

U
S

 H
W

Y
 41 N

JUSTIN V CAIN ST

REZ-2025-10

Cain Property
Rezoning Request

WRPDO Site Map

Legend

Roads

Railroads

Park

City Limits

Crashzone

Crashzone West

Urban Service Area

Open Water

Valdosta Airport

Wetlands

100 Yr Flood

Hydrology

Drastic

Recharge Areas

Parcels

portion

. 0 300 600 900
Feet



JUSTIN V CAIN ST

U
N

IO
N

 R
D

U
S

 H
W

Y
 41 N

REZ-2025-10
Cain Property

Rezoning Request

Future Development Map

µ

Roads

Functional Classification

1, INTERSTATE

3, OTHER PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

4, MINOR ARTERIAL

5, MAJOR COLLECTOR

6, MINOR COLLECTOR

7, LOCAL

Railroads

0 500 1,000250
Feet

Legend

Character Areas
Agriculture / Forestry

Community Activity
Center

Downtown

Established Residential

Industrial Activity
Center

Industrial Area

Institutional Activity
Center

Linear Greenspace/Trails

Mill Town

Moody Activity Zone

Neighborhood Activity
Center

Park/Recreation/
Conservation

Public / Institutional

Regional Activity Center

Remerton Neighborhood
Village

Rural Activity Center

Rural Residential

Suburban Area

Transitional
Neighborhood

Transportation/
Communication/Utilities



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: REZ-2025-11 Langdale Capital Assets, Coleman Road, ~719 
ac, C-C, R-1, & CON, to M-1 & CON, County Utilities  

  
 

  

DATE OF MEETING: July 8, 2025   
    

BUDGET IMPACT: N/A 
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

(  ) Annual  
(  ) Capital 
(X) N/A 
(  ) SPLOST  
(  ) TSPLOST 

Work 
Session/Regular 
Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: REZ-2025-11 Langdale Capital Assets, Coleman Road, 
~719 ac, C-C, R-1, & CON, to M-1 & CON, County Utilities 

 
 
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: This request represents a change in zoning on the subject property from C-C 
(Crossroads Commercial), R-1 (Low Density Residential) and CON (Conservation District) to M-1 (Light 
Manufacturing) and CON (Conservation District). The general motivation in this case is for the subject 
property to be developed into a large warehouse type campus. 
  
Proposed access for the subject property is along Coleman Road, a paved County Collector Road. The property 
is also split by the Norfolk Southern Railroad. The Comprehensive Plan Future Development Map depicts the 
subject property within the Urban Service Area, with Tract 1 depicted as an Industrial Activity Center 
Character Area, and Tract 2 mixed between Community Activity Center, Recreation and Conservation, 
Suburban, and Transportation and Utilities Character Areas.  
  
The TRC analyzed the request, the standards governing the exercise of zoning power set forth in 10.01.05 of 
the ULDC, and factors most relevant to this application, including the neighboring land uses, the 
environmentally sensitive wetlands and flood plains, the availability of County Utilities, the potential scale of 
the proposed development, the review process for a Development of Regional Impact (DRI[1]),  
and support of a growing and balanced economy. Therefore, the TRC recommends Approval of the request 
with the following conditions: 

1. There shall be no access to Briarberry Drive and Quail Hollow Circle from the subject property.  
2. Should a change in use occur where additional transportation and/or water/sewer infrastructure 

upgrades are required, the Developer will be responsible for the design, any acquisition of necessary 
right-of-way, relocation of utilities, and construction costs for the infrastructure improvements. 

3. All lots shall front interior roads. 
4. A 200’ undisturbed buffer shall be required along the Northern and Southern property lines abutting 

current Residential Zoning District boundaries. 
5. Any lighting located on the property shall be shielded and directed to avoid direct illumination of 

adjacent properties zoned Residentially. 



 

 

6. Any loudspeakers, paging systems, or electromagnetic interference generated on or by uses of the 
property shall be designed, installed and used such that they are not discernable at any abutting 
property line zoned Residentially.  

7. Correctional Facilities, Transitional Care Facilities, and Kennels with Outdoor Runs shall not be allowed. 

 
At the GLPC meeting, the applicant spoke in support of the request, stating that they do not intend to bring 
any harm or incompatibility to the adjoining residences, and were in agreement with the Staff's 
recommended conditions. Several neighbors spoke in opposition to the request, citing concerns about 
environmental impacts, the proposed buffers, additional traffic on Coleman Road and North Valdosta Road, 
and the possibility of hazardous material storage and pollutants. The GLPC followed the public hearing with 
additional questions to Staff about the allowable uses in M-1, the timelines for studies to address the 
environmental and engineering concerns, and clarified that a use not allowed in M-1 would require another 
public hearing cycle and Board approval. Ultimately, this led to a recommendation of Approval with the seven 
(7) Staff Conditions by a split vote of (4-3). 
 
 
[1] Developments of Regional Impact (DRIs) are large-scale developments that are likely to have regional 
effects beyond the local government jurisdiction in which they are located.  
  
  
  
OPTIONS: 1) Approve 

2) Approve with Conditions 
3) Table 
4) Deny 

  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Board's Pleasure 
  
DEPARTMENT: Planning/Zoning                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: JD Dillard 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 



Commercial, Office, and Institutional Zoning Districts
A. OI, Office Institutional.  This district is intended to allow development of 

business and professional activities, medical and dental facilities, and the 
development and maintenance of publicly owned lands and structures, 
parks and recreation areas, public schools, and buildings used principally 
for government functions.  Limited retail uses normally associated with 
office or institutional uses, accessory structures, and essential public 
services are also permissible.

B. C-C, Crossroads Commercial.  This district is intended to provide locations 
for limited retail and service uses to satisfy the common and frequent needs 
of residents of nearby residential and agricultural areas.  It is further the 
intent of this district to encourage such uses to be a part of a crossroads 
commercial convenience center.

C. C-G, General Commercial.  This district is intended to provide locations for 
a wide variety of retail and service uses to satisfy the common and frequent 
needs of residents in large sections of the County and of the traveling public.  
It is the intent of this district to encourage businesses to be part of planned 
commercial centers, neighborhood shopping centers, or community 
shopping centers.  

D. C-H, Highway Commercial.  This district is intended to provide areas for 
commercial activities which provide products and services that generally 
require locations with the highest level of access to major collector roads, 
arterial highways, and regional transportation systems.

Industrial and Intensive Zoning Districts
A. M-1, Light Manufacturing.  This district provides for light industrial uses 

which do not create excessive noise, odor, smoke, or dust and do not 
produce, store, or handle hazardous wastes.  Permissible uses include 
activities involved in warehousing, assembly, storage, and commercial 
services.

B. M-2, Heavy Manufacturing.  This district provides for the manufacturing, 
assembling, storage, distribution, and sales activities that are generally 
high intensity.  For those industries which may have negative impacts or 
nuisance factors associated with their use, supplemental standards shall 
apply within the district. 

C. M-3, High Intensity Industrial.  This district provides for industrial uses 
that are involved in high intensity manufacturing and processing of 
materials which create excessive noise, odor, smoke, or dust.  Special 
considerations for high intensity industrial uses include screening of 
activities, noise mitigation, and protection from encroachment from 
incompatible development.

D. I-S, Intensive Services.  This district is intended to provide sites for public 
and private facilities for wastewater treatment, land application of effluent, 
landfills, energy generation, resource recovery, and similar uses which may 
require environmental permits.



Commercial, Office, 
and Institutional 
Zoning Districts

Industrial and Intensive 
Zoning Districts

Zoning Districts:

P – Permissible
S – Permissible 
Subject to 
Supplemental 
Standards
Blank – Prohibited

O
I

C-C

C-G

C-H

M
-1

M
-2

(See Also Section 10.02.05(C))

M
-3

(See Also Section 10.02.05(C))

I-S
(See Also Section 

10.02.05(C))

Land Uses:
Social Services
Family Personal 
Care Homes (4-6 
residents) 
(For an “S” See Also 
Section 4.03.16)

S S S S

Group Personal 
Care Homes (7-15 
residents)
(For an “S” See Also 
Section 4.03.16)

S S S S

Hospital, Nursing 
Homes, and 
Congregate 
Personal Care 
Homes (For an “S” 
See Also Section 
4.03.13)

S S S P P

Transitional Care 
Facility (For an “S” 
See Also Section 
4.03.27)

S S S

Correctional 
Facility (For an “S” 
See Also Section 
4.03.28)

S S S

Agricultural and 
Farm Operations P P P P P



Commercial, Office, 
and Institutional 
Zoning Districts

Industrial and Intensive 
Zoning Districts

Zoning Districts:

P – Permissible
S – Permissible 
Subject to 
Supplemental 
Standards
Blank – Prohibited

O
I

C-C

C-G

C-H

M
-1

M
-2

(See Also Section 10.02.05(C))

M
-3

(See Also Section 10.02.05(C))

I-S
(See Also Section 

10.02.05(C))

(For an “S” See Also 
Section 4.03.02)
Agricultural 
Processing, Sales 
(wholesale and 
retail), and Outdoor 
Storage.
(For an “S” See Also 
Section 4.03.02)

S S P P P

Commercial 
Greenhouse and 
Plant Nurseries
(For an “S” See Also 
Section 4.03.03)

S S S P P P

Stables and 
Livestock
(For an “S” See Also 
Section 4.03.02)

P P P

Chicken Coops 
(For an “S” See Also 
Section 4.03.01)

S S S S S S S

Kennel without 
Outdoor Run
(For an “S” See Also 
Section 4.03.01)

S S S S S

Kennel with 
Outdoor Run S S S S



Commercial, Office, 
and Institutional 
Zoning Districts

Industrial and Intensive 
Zoning Districts

Zoning Districts:

P – Permissible
S – Permissible 
Subject to 
Supplemental 
Standards
Blank – Prohibited

O
I

C-C

C-G

C-H

M
-1

M
-2

(See Also Section 10.02.05(C))

M
-3

(See Also Section 10.02.05(C))

I-S
(See Also Section 

10.02.05(C))

(For an “S” See Also 
Section 4.03.01)
Adult 
Entertainment
(See Also Adult 
Entertainment 
Ordinance) 

S

Alcohol Package 
Store P P P

Animal Hospital, 
Veterinary Clinic, 
or Animal Shelter
(For an “S” See Also 
Section 4.03.01)

S P P P P

Automobile, Truck, 
and Other Motor 
Vehicle Repair
(For an “S” See Also 
Section 4.03.11)  

S S P P P

Bait and Tackle P P P P P P
Bed and Breakfast 
Lodging
(For an “S” See Also 
Section 4.03.17)

S S S S

Building Materials 
and Supply
(For an “S” See Also 
Section 4.03.05)

S S S P P

Bulk Storage Yards P P P



Commercial, Office, 
and Institutional 
Zoning Districts

Industrial and Intensive 
Zoning Districts

Zoning Districts:

P – Permissible
S – Permissible 
Subject to 
Supplemental 
Standards
Blank – Prohibited

O
I

C-C

C-G

C-H

M
-1

M
-2

(See Also Section 10.02.05(C))

M
-3

(See Also Section 10.02.05(C))

I-S
(See Also Section 

10.02.05(C))

Business Services 
such as Copying, 
Mailing, or Printing

P P P P P P P

Cemeteries
(For an “S” See Also 
Section 4.03.06)

S S S S S S

Club, Lodge, 
Meeting or Event 
Facility

P P P P

Child Care 
Learning Center 
(For an “S” See Also 
Section 4.03.08)

P P P P

Family Child Care 
Learning Home 
(For an “S” See Also 
Section 4.03.08)

P P P P

Detail Shop / Car 
Wash P P P P P P

Essential Public 
Services, such as 
Transmission Lines 
and Lift Stations

P P P P P P P P

Farmers Market 
and Outdoor Sales
(For an “S” See Also 
Section 4.03.09) 

S S S S P



Commercial, Office, 
and Institutional 
Zoning Districts

Industrial and Intensive 
Zoning Districts

Zoning Districts:

P – Permissible
S – Permissible 
Subject to 
Supplemental 
Standards
Blank – Prohibited

O
I

C-C

C-G

C-H

M
-1

M
-2

(See Also Section 10.02.05(C))

M
-3

(See Also Section 10.02.05(C))

I-S
(See Also Section 

10.02.05(C))

Financial 
Institutions, Banks 
and Credit Unions

P P P P P P P

Freight and Moving 
Establishments 
with total 
cumulative building 
sqft. under 30,000 
sqft.

P P P P

Freight and Moving 
Establishments 
with total 
cumulative building 
sqft. over 30,000 
sqft.

P P P

Funeral Home P P P P
Gasoline Station, 
with or without a 
Convenience Store

P P P P P P

Golf Course (with or 
without driving 
range)
(For an “S” See Also 
Section 4.03.10)

S S S S

Government and 
Civic Buildings, 
including Library, 

P P P P P P P P



Commercial, Office, 
and Institutional 
Zoning Districts

Industrial and Intensive 
Zoning Districts

Zoning Districts:

P – Permissible
S – Permissible 
Subject to 
Supplemental 
Standards
Blank – Prohibited

O
I

C-C

C-G

C-H

M
-1

M
-2

(See Also Section 10.02.05(C))

M
-3

(See Also Section 10.02.05(C))

I-S
(See Also Section 

10.02.05(C))

Museum, and 
Cultural Facilities
Grocery Store P P P P P
Home Sales Lot, 
Manufactured or 
Site Built Display

P P P

Hotels and Motels P P P

Ice Vending 
Machine
(For an “S” See Also 
Section 4.03.25)

S S S S S S

Junk and Salvage 
Yards
(For an “S” See Also 
Section 4.03.12)

S S S

Landfill, Sanitary 
or Inert (For an “S” 
See Also Section 
4.03.18 or 4.03.19)

S S

Laundry, Self-
Service P P P P P P

Lounge, Bar, and 
Nightclub P

Light Industry with 
total cumulative 
building sqft. under 
30,000 sqft.

P P P P



Commercial, Office, 
and Institutional 
Zoning Districts

Industrial and Intensive 
Zoning Districts

Zoning Districts:

P – Permissible
S – Permissible 
Subject to 
Supplemental 
Standards
Blank – Prohibited

O
I

C-C

C-G

C-H

M
-1

M
-2

(See Also Section 10.02.05(C))

M
-3

(See Also Section 10.02.05(C))

I-S
(See Also Section 

10.02.05(C))

Light Industry with 
total cumulative 
building sqft. over 
30,000 sqft.

P P P

Heavy Industry P P
Industrial Uses 
with Nuisance 
Features such as 
Odor, Noise, 
Vibration, or 
Hazardous 
Materials (For an 
“S” See Also Section 
4.03.20)

S S S

Medical and Dental 
Clinics, 
Laboratories

P P P P P P P

Mini-Storage or 
Self-Storage Facility 
(For an “S” See Also 
Section 4.03.21)

S S S S S S S

Parking lots and 
Parking Garages P P P P P P P

Personal Services   
Barber, Beauty, 
Shoe Repair, Dry 
Cleaning Pick-Up

P P P P P P P

Professional Offices P P P P P P P P
Radio, TV and 
Telecommunication S S S S S S S S



Commercial, Office, 
and Institutional 
Zoning Districts

Industrial and Intensive 
Zoning Districts

Zoning Districts:

P – Permissible
S – Permissible 
Subject to 
Supplemental 
Standards
Blank – Prohibited

O
I

C-C

C-G

C-H

M
-1

M
-2

(See Also Section 10.02.05(C))

M
-3

(See Also Section 10.02.05(C))

I-S
(See Also Section 

10.02.05(C))

Towers (For an “S” 
See Also Section 
5.05.00)

Amusement Parks 
and Drive-In 
Theaters (For an “S” 
See Also Section 
4.03.22)

S S

Nature Facilities, 
Picnic Areas, 
Parks, and Trails

P P P P P P P P

Indoor Recreation 
such as Billiard 
Parlors, Bowling 
Alleys, Game 
Rooms, and Skating 
Rinks

P P P

Outdoor Recreation 
such as Miniature 
Golf, Stables, 
Marinas, Sports 
Fields, and 
Fishing/Hunting 
Preserves (For an 
“S” See Also Section 
4.03.23)

S P P P P S

Recreational 
Vehicle Park and 
Campground (For 

S S



Commercial, Office, 
and Institutional 
Zoning Districts

Industrial and Intensive 
Zoning Districts

Zoning Districts:

P – Permissible
S – Permissible 
Subject to 
Supplemental 
Standards
Blank – Prohibited

O
I

C-C

C-G

C-H

M
-1

M
-2

(See Also Section 10.02.05(C))

M
-3

(See Also Section 10.02.05(C))

I-S
(See Also Section 

10.02.05(C))

an “S” See Also 
Section 4.03.14)

Religious Uses and 
Facilities (For an 
“S” See Also Section 
4.03.15)

S S S S S

Research and 
Experimental 
Laboratories

P P P P P

Restaurant P P P P P
Retail Stores P P P P P
Business, 
Commercial Schools P P P P P

Private K-12 
Schools (For an “S” 
See Also Section 
4.03.24)

P P P P

Private Colleges 
and Universities 
(For an “S” See Also 
Section 4.03.07)

P P P P P

Trade, Industrial 
Schools P P P P P P

Studios, such as 
Music, Dancing, 
Art, or Photography 
Schools

P P P P P P



Commercial, Office, 
and Institutional 
Zoning Districts

Industrial and Intensive 
Zoning Districts

Zoning Districts:

P – Permissible
S – Permissible 
Subject to 
Supplemental 
Standards
Blank – Prohibited

O
I

C-C

C-G

C-H

M
-1

M
-2

(See Also Section 10.02.05(C))

M
-3

(See Also Section 10.02.05(C))

I-S
(See Also Section 

10.02.05(C))

Terminals for 
Freight by Rail or 
Truck with total 
cumulative building 
sqft. under 30,000 
sqft.

P P P P

Terminals for 
Freight by Rail or 
Truck with total 
cumulative building 
sqft. over 30,000 
sqft.

P P

Theaters, Movie or 
Performing Arts 
(Indoor Only)

P P P

Trades and Repair 
Services such as 
Electrical, Heating 
and Air, 
Mechanical, 
Painting, Glass and 
Plumbing

P P P P P P P

Truck Stops P P P P
Vehicle Sales, 
(automobile, truck, 
motorcycle, boat 
and Recreational 
vehicles) (For an “S” 

S S S P P P



Commercial, Office, 
and Institutional 
Zoning Districts

Industrial and Intensive 
Zoning Districts

Zoning Districts:

P – Permissible
S – Permissible 
Subject to 
Supplemental 
Standards
Blank – Prohibited

O
I

C-C

C-G

C-H

M
-1

M
-2

(See Also Section 10.02.05(C))

M
-3

(See Also Section 10.02.05(C))

I-S
(See Also Section 

10.02.05(C))

See Also Section 
4.03.04)
Warehouse, Not 
Including Mini-
Storage with total 
cumulative building 
sqft. under 30,000 
sqft.

P P P P P

Warehouse, Not 
Including Mini-
Storage with total 
cumulative building 
sqft. over 30,000 
sqft.

P P P P

Wholesale 
Establishments 
with total 
cumulative building 
sqft. under 30,000 
sqft.

P P P P

Wholesale 
Establishments 
with total 
cumulative building 
sqft. over 30,000 
sqft.

P P P





Langdale Capital Assets
Rezoning Request

R-1

R-A

CON

C-C

R-21

C-N

R-15

R-10

C-H

R-P

E-A

E-R

N VALDOSTA RD

C
O

L
E

M
A

N
R

D
N

B
R

IA
R

B
E

R
R

Y
 D

R

AMBERLEY TR

F
O

X
B

O
R

O
U

G
H

 B
L

V
D

V
A

L

N
O

R
T

H
D

R

CRO
O

KED CIR

O
A

K
R

ID
G

E

BEND

F
O

X
B

O
R

O
U

G
H

A
V

E

OZLEY LN

FLYTHE RD

OLD US 41 N

Q
U

A
IL

 H
O

L
W

N
 VA

LD
O

STA
 R

D

T
IM

B
E

R
B

R
O

O
K

 T
R

SKEE
T

R
A

N
G

E
R

D

VA

L
D

E
L

R
D

V
A

L TE
C

H
 R

D

POWERS PORTSRD

BO
M

AR
LN

L
A

N
T

E
R

N
 L

N

R
A

N
G

E

RD

HYTA ME DER
ER

DR

I 75 S
B

I 75 N
B

Legend

Roads

Railroads

Parcels

Urban Service Area

Zoning Conditions

WET

YES

City Limits

Valdosta Airport

Zoning Districts

C-C

C-G

C-H

CON

E-A

I-S

M-1

M-2

M-3

MAZ - 1

MAZ - 2

MAZ - 3

O-I

P-D

PD-R

R-1

R-10

R-21

R-A

GLPC Zoning

Zoning Location Map

0 1,000 2,000

Feet

REZ-2025-11

.

CURRENT ZONING: C - C, R - 1, CON
PROPOSED ZONING: M - 1, CON



F OXBOROU G
H

B
L

V
D

C
O

LE
M

A
N

R
D

N

V
A

L TE
C

H
 R

D

B
R

IA
R

B
E

R
R

Y
 D

R
S

K
E

E
T

R
A

N
G

E

RD

O
A

K
RID

GE BEND

I 75 N
B

WILLOW WOOD G
A

T
E

OZLEY LN

I 75 R
A

M
P

T
IM

B
E

R
B

R
O

O
K

T
R

POWERSPORTS
RD

B
OM

AR LN

N
 VA

LD
O

STA
 R

D

FLYTHE RD

CROOKED CIR

L
A

N
T

E
R

N
 L

N

HUM
M

IN
G

B
IR

D
L

N

R
A

N
G

E
R

D

HYT
A

MEDE R ER
DR

I 75 S
B

REZ-2025-11
Langdale Capital Assets

Rezoning Request

Future Development Map

µ

Roads

Functional Classification

1, INTERSTATE

3, OTHER PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL

4, MINOR ARTERIAL

5, MAJOR COLLECTOR

6, MINOR COLLECTOR

7, LOCAL

Railroads

0 1,250 2,500625
Feet

Legend

Character Areas
Agriculture / Forestry

Community Activity
Center

Downtown

Established Residential

Industrial Activity
Center

Industrial Area

Institutional Activity
Center

Linear Greenspace/Trails

Mill Town

Moody Activity Zone

Neighborhood Activity
Center

Park/Recreation/
Conservation

Public / Institutional

Regional Activity Center

Remerton Neighborhood
Village

Rural Activity Center

Rural Residential

Suburban Area

Transitional
Neighborhood

Transportation/
Communication/Utilities



EE EE

EE

B
R

IA
R

B
E

R
R

Y
 D

R

FOXBOROUGH BLVD

SPRING

BROOK

CIR

BOMAR

LN

TH
O

R
N

W
O

O
D

W
A

Y

OAKRIDGE BEND

C
O

L
E

M
A

N
R

D
N

RUSTIC
RIDGE RD

L
A

N
T

E
R

N
 L

N

Q
U

A
IL

H
O

L
WT

IM
B

E
R

B
R

O
O

K
T

R

S
K

EE
T

R
A

N
G

E RD

R
A

N
G

E
 R

D

H
YTA

M
E

D
ERE

R

DR
H

U
M

M
IN

G
B

IR
D

 L
N

V
A

L TE
C

H
 R

D

I 75 S
B

I 75 N
B

Withlacoochee River

REZ-2025-11

Langdale Capital Assets
Rezoning Request

WRPDO Site Map

Legend

Roads

Railroads

Park

City Limits

Crashzone

Crashzone West

Urban Service Area

Open Water

Valdosta Airport

Wetlands

100 Yr Flood

Hydrology

Drastic

Recharge Areas

Parcels

. 0 500 1000 1500 2000 2500 3000
Feet



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM 

 

 

SUBJECT: Beer & Wine License - Mustapha Ndure of Wawa 
Southeast, LLC DBA WAWA Store #6308 located at 4598 North 
Valdosta Rd., Valdosta, GA  

  
 

  

DATE OF MEETING: July 8, 2025   
    

BUDGET IMPACT:  
 FUNDING SOURCE: 

  

(  )  Annual  
(  ) Capital 
(  )  N/A 

Work 
Session/Regular 
Session 

  

    
 

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Beer & Wine License - Mustapha Ndure of Wawa 
Southeast, LLC DBA WAWA 6308 - 4598 North Valdosta Rd., Valdosta, GA 

 
 
  
HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: Mustapha Ndure of Wawa Southeast, LLC DBA WAWA, Store #6308 located at 
4598 North Valdosta Rd., Valdosta, GA is requesting a license for the sale of beer and wine for consumption 
off the premises.  This is a new establishment.  The ordinance and guidelines for approval of the license have 
been met.  All forms are attached and upon approval by the Board the license will be granted. 
  
  
OPTIONS: 1. Approval of the Beer & Wine License 

2. Board's Pleasure 
  
  
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve 
  
DEPARTMENT: Finance                           DEPARTMENT HEAD: Stephanie Black 
  
ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 




























	1. Call To Order
	2. Invocation
	3. Pledge Of Allegiance To The Flag
	4. Minutes For Approval
	a. June 23, 2025, Work Session Minutes & June 24, 202
	b. June 23, 2025 Budget Public Hearing Minutes
	c. June 30, 2025, Special Called Meeting (Budget Adop

	5. Public Hearing
	a. REZ-2025-10 Cain Property, 6261 US HWY 41 N, ~21ac
	Agenda Item Report
	Cain LOI
	Site Plan
	REZ-2025-10Z
	REZ-2025-10W
	REZ-2025-10F

	b. REZ-2025-11 Langdale Capital Assets, Coleman Road,
	Agenda Item Report
	Commercial Industrial Use Table
	6519 Rezoning Map 2
	REZ-2025-11Z
	REZ-2025-11F
	REZ-2025-11W


	6. For Consideration
	a. Beer & Wine License - Mustapha Ndure of Wawa South
	Agenda Item Report
	Wawa 6308 attachments for July 2025


	7. Reports - County Manager
	8. Citizens Wishing To Be Heard - Please State Your Name and Address
	9. Adjournment

